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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  I'm Joel Rivera,

          3  I'm the Chair of the Health Committee. Today's

          4  hearing will examine what different people and

          5  groups in the City are doing to help prevent the

          6  flu.  Most people think of the seasonal flu as a

          7  week's worth of discomfort and misery, but for some

          8  people the flu can have a serious consequence and

          9  can even result in death. Experts agree that being

         10  vaccinated is the best method of preventing the flu.

         11                 There are two types of flu vaccine:

         12  One is administered using a shot and the other is

         13  delivered through a nasal spray.  Most people should

         14  get one of the vaccines every year, but for certain

         15  groups of people it is especially important.  These

         16  people include seniors, those with chronic health

         17  conditions and young children. It is particularly

         18  important for them to be immunized because they are

         19  more susceptible to getting the flu and more likely

         20  to suffer from complications from the flu.  People

         21  need to get vaccinated every year.  The strains of

         22  the flu that are in circulation change year-to-year.

         23                 As a result, the vaccine changes

         24  every year. The vaccine is made of the strains of

         25  the flu that experts think will be prevalent in that
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          2  particular year.  Because there are so many

          3  different strains, it is still possible to get the

          4  flu, even if you've been immunized against it.  You

          5  can still get a strain of the flu that was not

          6  included in the vaccine; however, it has been

          7  suggested that those who get immunized every year

          8  are experiencing milder versions of the flu if they

          9  do contract it.

         10                 In the United States, flu season

         11  typically runs from November through April, so now

         12  is the best time to talk to your doctor about

         13  getting a flu vaccine. I encourage everyone to find

         14  out if they should be immunized and to take the

         15  steps to get vaccinated.

         16                 I look forward to hearing from the

         17  witnesses here today about the many programs that

         18  are reaching out to New Yorkers and helping them to

         19  get their vaccines.

         20                 Before we begin, let me just

         21  introduce my colleague, Maria del Carmen Arroyo, who

         22  is here with us today and will have members come in

         23  and out obviously as different hearings are taking

         24  place simultaneously.

         25                 At this point in time we are going to
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          2  be hearing from Dr. Benjamin Mojica, I apologize

          3  about that, from New York Health and Hospitals

          4  Corporation, and Jane Zucker from the Department of

          5  Health and Mental Hygiene, and Linda Whitaker from

          6  DFTA.

          7                 Thank you, you can just state your

          8  name for the record and you may proceed with your

          9  testimony.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:  Good

         11  afternoon, Chairman Rivera, and members of the

         12  Health Committee.  I am Dr. Jane Zucker, Assistant

         13  Commissioner for the Bureau of Immunization at the

         14  New York City Department of Health and Mental

         15  Hygiene.  On behalf of Commissioner Frieden, thank

         16  you for the opportunity to testify regarding the

         17  Department's efforts to combat seasonal flu.

         18                 Each year nearly 3,000 New Yorkers

         19  die from flu and pneumonia, and thousands more are

         20  hospitalized as a result of these preventable

         21  conditions.  Anyone can get the flu, however, those

         22  most vulnerable to its complications are adults 65

         23  and older and children younger than two years.

         24                 In 2005, '06, an estimated 59 percent

         25  of adults 65 years of age and older in New York City
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          2  reported receiving a flu vaccine.  This represents

          3  an eight percent increase in the coverage rate from

          4  that of 2004, '05, the season in which nearly half

          5  the adult flu vaccine supply was pulled from the

          6  market as a result of a manufacturing failure.  In

          7  previous seasons, flu vaccination coverage was

          8  between 63 and 64 percent for persons 65 and older.

          9  There are racial and ethnic disparities in coverage:

         10    64 percent was reached among Caucasians, but only

         11  47 percent coverage was reported among African

         12  Americans.  Coverage rates among Latinos was 59

         13  percent and among Asians, 63 percent.  Data on

         14  neighborhood coverage levels for the '05, '06 flu

         15  season indicate that neighborhoods with the lowest

         16  coverage remain Central Brooklyn and Harlem.

         17                 New Yorkers can call 311 or visit the

         18  DOHMH website to find out where to get a flu shot.

         19  The Department's flu shot locator provides referrals

         20  based on age and zip code, and in addition to the

         21  DOHMH clinics, senior centers, and Health and

         22  Hospital Corporation sites, we have expanded the

         23  listings to include private sites and links to other

         24  websites, such as the American Lung Association

         25  site.  This year our locator provides referrals to
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          2  more than 730 sites throughout the five boroughs.

          3                 In order to increase immunization

          4  coverage and reduce vaccine- preventable

          5  hospitalizations and deaths, the Department made

          6  immunizing New Yorkers a part of the DOHMH Take Care

          7  New York health policy agenda.  In recognition of

          8  the importance of preventing flu, the Department has

          9  a comprehensive strategic plan that focuses on six

         10  main areas:  Provider education, clinic services,

         11  media and advertising, community outreach, vaccine

         12  distribution, and legislative change.

         13                 The Department encourages all New

         14  Yorkers to have a medical home, and accordingly the

         15  Immunization Program encourages patients to seek flu

         16  shots at their regular doctor's office.  To ensure

         17  that providers are well informed, the Department

         18  publishes an annual City Health Information

         19  newsletter regarding flu, sponsors grand rounds and

         20  lectures, and distributes Influenza Action Kits

         21  along with a more detailed Influenza Resource Guide.

         22  The Department promotes best practices for improving

         23  vaccination coverage can be practical

         24  recommendations that can be used in small private

         25  offices such as chart stickers to tools for
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          2  promoting vaccination in hospital and large clinic

          3  settings.  DOHMH places particular emphasis on the

          4  importance of flu shots for health care workers in

          5  medical settings and staff in long term care

          6  facilities.

          7                 The Department also provides direct

          8  clinic services through walk- in Immunization

          9  Clinics in each of the five boroughs to ensure that

         10  all New Yorkers have access to free flu shots during

         11  flu season.  We began providing flu vaccine as soon

         12  as we received our supply in mid- September and as

         13  of October 12th we have already vaccinated over

         14  2,200 people in our clinics.

         15                 The federal Vaccines for Children

         16  program covers children up to age 19 and includes

         17  those covered by Medicaid, as well as those who are

         18  uninsured and those underinsured children seen in

         19  Federally Qualified Health Centers.  Approximately

         20  80 percent of infants and two- thirds of children

         21  younger than 19 in New York City are eligible to

         22  receive flu vaccine through the VFC program.  In the

         23  2006, '07 flu season, approximately 75,000 children

         24  six months to 23 months of age received a flu shot,

         25  and we are optimistic about our ability to increase
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          2  pediatric vaccination rates this year through the

          3  distribution of VFC vaccine.

          4                 Department Of Health and Mental

          5  Hygiene also partners with the Department for the

          6  Aging, the Visiting Nurse Service of New York, the

          7  New York City Housing Authority and community

          8  organizations to facilitate flu shot events.  Each

          9  year, letters are sent to all DFTA senior centers

         10  inviting them to hold flu clinics, and this year

         11  approximately 400 clinics have already been

         12  scheduled.  DOHMH provides vaccine to Visiting Nurse

         13  Service for additional community based outreach

         14  activities and to the Department of Homeless

         15  Services to reach the homeless population. Finally,

         16  the Department leads the New York City Adult

         17  Immunization Coalition, which meets quarterly, and

         18  is comprised of medical and professionals partners

         19  dedicated to promoting flu vaccination.

         20                 To increase community awareness of

         21  the importance of flu vaccination and to promote

         22  community demand for flu vaccine, DOHMH sends

         23  educators to health fairs, Community Board meetings,

         24  and senior centers.  We place promotional

         25  advertisements in supermarket circulars and in
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          2  community newspapers.  To reduce racial and ethnic

          3  disparities in immunization rates, the Department

          4  also engages in specific outreach to populations

          5  with low coverage rates.  For example, in Central

          6  Brooklyn we worked closely with the Brooklyn Flu

          7  Steering Committee to develop additional educational

          8  materials.  We targeted intervention strategies to

          9  both community residents and medical professionals,

         10  including coordinating with the Provident Clinical

         11  Society to educate its physician members. In

         12  addition to many of the past year's initiatives,

         13  DOHMH is planning new community outreach activities,

         14  including collaboration with groups such as the New

         15  York Academy of Medicine's Harlem Community and

         16  Academic Partnership.

         17                 Radio public services announcements

         18  have begun and we will soon release a new campaign

         19  that includes subway advertisements and billboards.

         20  We are enhancing our flu season media and

         21  advertising with the addition of new posters and

         22  health bulletins targeting Spanish- speaking and

         23  African American New Yorkers.

         24                 Despite these efforts, flu vaccine

         25  coverage in New York City has not increased from the
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          2  2001 level of 63 percent for three of the last four

          3  years, not including the '04, '05, that was the

          4  shortage system.  This rate falls far short of the

          5  National Healthy People 2010 goal of 90 percent for

          6  persons 65 and older. Barriers to expand

          7  immunization coverage include supply issues,

          8  exemplified by the flu vaccine shortage in '04, '05,

          9  and misperceptions about vaccine safety.

         10                 Vaccine supply problems have

         11  significantly complicated the delivery of vaccine

         12  and limited the number of available doses, every

         13  year since 2000, the only exception was 2003.  These

         14  issues are largely related to national and

         15  international problems of vaccine production and are

         16  outside of the Department's control.  For those

         17  years, instead of promoting vaccination, DOHMH was

         18  forced to spend valuable time and resources

         19  redistributing vaccine to facilities serving the

         20  most vulnerable populations and by running large flu

         21  clinics for those who could not otherwise obtain

         22  vaccinations from their regular doctor.  I'm happy

         23  to report that for the '07, '08 flu season the

         24  Department received enough vaccine in time to fully

         25  implement our agenda. Nationwide, approximately 132
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          2  million doses of vaccine are expected to be

          3  available for distribution.

          4                 Despite our efforts to increase

          5  immunization rates and prevent the spread of flu,

          6  flu remains a serious public health issue in New

          7  York City.  DOHMH conducts year- round flu

          8  surveillance and responds to outbreaks of flu in the

          9  City, including those occurring in populations that

         10  are at high risk for complications secondary to the

         11  flu, for example, those in long- term care

         12  facilities.  These outbreaks occur every season, and

         13  the Department actively promotes guidance to

         14  facilities on curtailing outbreaks, makes site

         15  visits to assess infection control practices, and

         16  collects data to help prevent outbreaks in the

         17  future.

         18                 The Department participates in the

         19  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's

         20  Influenza Sentinel Provider Network program, in

         21  which designated providers report on the number of

         22  flu cases they see in their respective practices.

         23  This system was initiated in NYC during the '01, '02

         24  flu season with the recruitment of twenty medical

         25  practices and has since expanded to include 70
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          2  additional practices, exceeding the CDC goal of one

          3  sentinel per 250,000 residents.

          4                 DOHMH engages in laboratory

          5  surveillance, communicating weekly with the

          6  approximately 40 New York City laboratories that

          7  perform testing for flu.  The Department also tracks

          8  flu- associated deaths.  This information is used to

          9  prepare the weekly flu activity report posted on the

         10  DOHMH website and is sent to all participating New

         11  York City sentinel providers, the New York State

         12  Department of Health, and the CDC.

         13                 Looking ahead, a tremendous

         14  opportunity exists to more fully develop our

         15  immunization infrastructure.  New York State law

         16  does not currently allow pharmacists to administer

         17  flu and pneumococcal immunizations.  Allowing

         18  pharmacists to provide immunizations has become the

         19  standard of care, and is permitted in 46 states.

         20  Pharmacies offer a natural entry point for targeting

         21  those who are at high- risk for flu and its

         22  complications.  People at elevated risk, for

         23  example, those with chronic conditions such as

         24  diabetes, regularly see their pharmacist to refill

         25  their prescriptions, providing an opportunity for
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          2  flu vaccination, and pharmacists are licensed health

          3  professionals whose training curriculum includes all

          4  the critical skills that with appropriate

          5  certification makes them well- qualified

          6  professionals and in order to provide immunizations

          7  to adults. The City strongly supports legislation to

          8  enable licensed pharmacists to administer

          9  immunizations to adults.

         10                      Now is the to get vaccinated,

         11  and the Department welcomes the opportunity to

         12  partner with the Council in an effort to increase

         13  vaccination rates.  We encourage you to get a flu

         14  shot at a senior center in your District, and to

         15  send out a list of clinics and senior center flu

         16  shot sites to your constituents.  We have

         17  promotional brochures and posters for you to take

         18  back to your District Office, and are happy to help

         19  order additional materials.

         20                 Thank you again for your interest in

         21  this issue, and I am pleased to answer any questions

         22  you may have at this time.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         25  much.  We'll move onto the next, Mr. Mojica.
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          2                 Doesn't work.  Okay.

          3                 DR. MOJICA:  Good afternoon,

          4  Chairperson Rivera, and members of the Committee on

          5  Health.  I am Benjamin Mojica, I'm the Senior

          6  Assistant Vice President and Deputy Chief Medical

          7  Officer for the New York City Health and Hospitals

          8  Corporation.  Thank you for the opportunity to

          9  discuss HHC's efforts to prepare for the flu season

         10  and our activities to promote influenza vaccination,

         11  particularly among those who are most at risk for

         12  complications of the disease.

         13                 As you know, influenza and pneumonia

         14  remain one of the leading causes of death in New

         15  York City as Dr. Zucker had mentioned.  Almost 2,600

         16  people die annually from this disease in this City

         17  alone.  Nationwide, there are approximately 36,000

         18  deaths a year from the flu, 90 percent of which

         19  occur in people over the age of 65.  Fortunately, a

         20  sufficient supply of influenza vaccine is available

         21  this year and vaccinations have been effective in

         22  preventing flu transmission and reducing the

         23  mortality associated with complications from the

         24  virus.

         25                 In recent years we have seen the
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          2  challenges inherent in preparing for flu season.

          3  The influenza vaccination is produced annually in

          4  anticipation of what viral strains may be in

          5  circulation for that particular season.  The

          6  influenza viruses, of which there are many, mutate

          7  quickly and rapidly create new strains.

          8  Subsequently, the influenza vaccine cannot be

          9  stockpiled, and the vaccine supply is subject to the

         10  vagaries and challenges of vaccine production.  In

         11  recent years, problems with vaccine production

         12  resulted in manufacturing and distribution delays

         13  and severe shortages.  This year, we are pleased to

         14  report that we have received most of the more than

         15  200,000 doses of vaccine ordered for the season and

         16  anticipate delivery of the rest of the vaccines

         17  before the end of next month.

         18                 Flu shots are available at all HHC

         19  facilities at no cost for children 18 and under, and

         20  at low cost for adults.  The best time to get

         21  vaccinated is in October or November, but anyone can

         22  still get vaccinated in the winter months since

         23  influenza viruses usually peak during late December

         24  through March.  An annual flu shot is recommended

         25  for the following groups:
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          2                 Persons at high risk for influenza-

          3  related complications and severe disease, including:

          4    Children aged 6 to 59 months; pregnant women;

          5  persons aged 50 years and older; persons of any age

          6  with certain chronic conditions; and its also

          7  recommended for persons who live with or care for

          8  persons at high risk, including:  Household contacts

          9  who have frequent contact with persons at high risk

         10  and who can transit influenza to those persons at

         11  high risk of complications from the flu; and

         12  healthcare workers.

         13                 Every year, HHC prepares for the flu

         14  vaccination season by working to:  Ensure access to

         15  the vaccine; increase public awareness and outreach;

         16  increase provider education; and rigorous monitoring

         17  of vaccine utilization.

         18                 To ensure that our facilities have

         19  vaccines for our patients and employees, we

         20  increased the amount of vaccines purchased this

         21  year, and have established a small cache of vaccines

         22  reserved for distribution to facilities in the event

         23  that they may experience a shortage.  We have also

         24  established a central inventory system which

         25  provides us with information on the vaccine levels
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          2  in HHC's healthcare facilities.

          3                 This year, the influenza vaccine has

          4  been available to HHC's patients and employees since

          5  the beginning of this month. We anticipate that

          6  vaccines will be available through April 30, 2008 or

          7  later.

          8                 In order to reduce the likelihood of

          9  transmission of influenza between employees and

         10  patients, HHC has taken steps in recent years to

         11  increase the level of vaccination among our

         12  employees.  We strive to make it easy and convenient

         13  for employees to get vaccinated.  The vaccine has

         14  been made available to employees since the beginning

         15  of October, this year, in designated sites including

         16  the facilities' employee health clinic.  In

         17  addition, for the next two- weeks, beginning

         18  yesterday the vaccine will be made available to

         19  employees at their worksite in all shifts or tours

         20  through Sunday, November 4th.  This process will

         21  eliminate the potential barrier of vaccine

         22  inaccessibility to employees. Small group

         23  discussions among employees are being conducted to

         24  inform employees about the benefits of vaccination

         25  and correcting previously held myths or
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          2  misinformation about the influenza vaccine.  We are

          3  also providing incentives to employees to promote

          4  vaccination.  These include gifts to employees who

          5  receive the vaccine during the intensive two- week

          6  vaccination period and an opportunity to win a $100

          7  gift card to a lottery for employees who receive the

          8  influenza vaccine by Sunday, November 4, 2007.

          9                 Studies have shown that wide

         10  immunization of healthcare workers can be very

         11  effective in preventing flu cases, especially among

         12  patients in fragile health who may be more

         13  vulnerable to infection and the secondary illnesses

         14  that can accompany influenza.

         15                 Increasing public awareness and

         16  outreach.  Every year in October, HHC conducts a

         17  month- long Take Care New York campaign.  In

         18  addition to offering flu shots, the campaign urges

         19  all New Yorkers to get screened for cancer, heart

         20  disease, diabetes and other serious chronic

         21  illnesses.  A central part of our mission is to

         22  reduce the health disparities that continue to

         23  plague the communities we serve, and early detection

         24  and treatment is a key factor in keeping people

         25  healthy.  This month, HHC hospitals have conducted
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          2  health screenings and have conducted educational

          3  events. Outreach efforts have been promoted through

          4  radio ad's in Spanish and English, movie theater

          5  advertisements in more than 130 locations, and

          6  public service announcements in local newspapers.

          7                 We have also worked with HHC's health

          8  plan, MetroPlus to remind patients about the need to

          9  be vaccinated.  Post card reminders have been sent

         10  informing patients, particularly those at increased

         11  risk of complications from the flu, of the

         12  importance of getting their flu shot now.

         13                 Increase provider education.  It has

         14  been show that a provider's advice to patients about

         15  the need for the vaccine is effective in convincing

         16  the patient to receive the vaccine and increasing

         17  vaccination rates.  To this end, in collaboration

         18  with our colleagues in the New York City Department

         19  of Health and Mental Hygiene, learning sessions for

         20  our providers on influenza and the influenza vaccine

         21  are being conducted.  A series of Continuing Medical

         22  Education accredited program are underway and are

         23  designed to provide clinicians and others in the

         24  health care team the latest information on the

         25  prevention and management of influenza and the
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          2  current recommendations on the use of the vaccine.

          3                 In addition, easy access to

          4  information on influenza vaccine has been

          5  facilitated through the CME website.  This site is

          6  accessible to all of our clinicians and has the

          7  current recommendations on the use of the flu

          8  vaccine from the Centers for Disease Control and

          9  Prevention.  Additional information on influenza

         10  during the season will be provided through the site.

         11                 Rigorously monitor vaccine

         12  utilization.  Every year we closely monitor the

         13  utilization levels for the influenza vaccines and

         14  keep a watchful eye on those patients residing in

         15  long- term care facilities.  We share this

         16  information with administrators and providers in

         17  HHC's facilities as a guide for them to direct their

         18  efforts in targeted ways throughout the flu season.

         19  We have set high expectations this year, and through

         20  the intensive efforts of HHC's dedicated staff,

         21  fully expect to meet our goals which include the use

         22  of approximately 200,000 doses of influenza vaccine.

         23                 This concludes my written testimony.

         24  I would be happy to answer your questions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very
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          2  much.  We'll go on to the next presenter.  Okay,

          3  before we go on with the questions, I want to

          4  introduce my colleagues who have joined us. We have

          5  Council Member Helen Sears and Council Member Helen

          6  Foster and Council Member Kendall Stewart.

          7                 I just have a couple of questions.

          8  One of them is I know that in 2004, 2005 we had a

          9  shortage of supplies.  Who produces the vaccine and

         10  where is the manufacturer?  Do we have a

         11  manufacturing plant here in the states or are we

         12  heavily dependent to oversees distributors?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:  There

         14  are four licensed vaccine manufacturers and then

         15  there was actually a fifth that was added this year.

         16    Some of the manufacturing plants are oversees but

         17  I think the good news is one of the manufacturers

         18  does have capacity in the U.S. and has actually

         19  recently greatly expanded that manufacturing

         20  ability.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay.  And who

         22  are the companies?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:

         24  There's Sanofi, Novartis, which had bought Kryon

         25  (phonetic), there's Glaxo Smith Kline, and then
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          2  there's MedImmune for Flu Mist.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  And that's the

          4  nasal spray one. Okay.   So we received a partial

          5  shipment of the 200,000 that we had ordered, what is

          6  the delay in the rest of it?  Is this normal for

          7  there to be delay in the shipment and is that going

          8  to be a concern in terms of distribution?

          9                 DR. MOJICA:  Well the vaccines

         10  usually ordered are not delivered in one big shot,

         11  in one big bulk.  They are usually delivered in

         12  smaller portions and sometimes they can be as small

         13  as 1,000 doses, sometimes they can be as big as

         14  10,000 doses.  It helps us really to have them

         15  delivered in smaller slots because we do have a

         16  problem with stockpiling them in the pharmacy.  This

         17  year we ordered single dose vaccines in syringes.

         18  That is far more difficult to store than multi- dose

         19  viles when a vile of vaccines contains doses for ten

         20  doses.  So it is to our advantage that they don't

         21  come in one big bulk order but in smaller stocks.

         22  And that's not a delay in the distribution this

         23  year.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  So is there a

         25  benefit to having a single dose as opposed to the
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          2  ten doses in a vile?

          3                 DR. MOJICA:   A couple of advantages.

          4  One is, introduces waste-lets (phonetic) because you

          5  only use one at a time, you don't open a big vile

          6  and then if you don't use all of them sometimes they

          7  get wasted.  It's also more convenient for the

          8  employees to administer because they don't have to

          9  withdraw the vaccine from a vile using a syringe and

         10  it's also safer because it is already prepared and

         11  you just have to give it to the patient.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Sounds good.

         13  Also, I just wanted to get some more information on

         14  the assembly and senate bills.  There were a lot of

         15  pharmacists who actually give out the vaccinations

         16  at the pharmacies.  What seems to be stopping that

         17  because that seems like if 46 other states have

         18  approved it, it seems almost like it should be a

         19  standard practice?  Do we know what has been

         20  gridlock up there?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:  Well

         22  I think part of it has been concern about the proper

         23  training, but our pharmacists are able to actually

         24  vaccinate.  I think that they've been able to

         25  address that through proper curriculum and providing
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          2  a curriculum. There is additional information that

          3  has been provided in terms of safety and experience

          4  in other states as well, and I think there is some

          5  concern voiced by medical professionals as to how

          6  they would know whether or not their patient

          7  actually got a flu vaccine at a pharmacist (sic) if

          8  they didn't actually get it in their doctor's

          9  office.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay.  I think

         11  I'm thinking of Dr. Mojica's testimony when I saw

         12  that New York City has about 2,600 deaths annually,

         13  while the nation has 36,000.  It seems like we have

         14  a large portion of that, and probably eight percent

         15  of the death from New York City.  Is there a reason

         16  why that is?  Is that similar within other large

         17  Cities within the nation?

         18                 DR. MOJICA:  Yes, I'm not sure what

         19  the particular reason is, oh, I'm sorry, but that is

         20  what we see in terms of the reported deaths to the

         21  New York City Health Department.  I'm not quite sure

         22  why that is the case.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:  I

         24  think also the 2,600 number includes a combination

         25  of both flu and pneumonia --
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          2                 DR. MOJICA:  And pneumonia.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:  --

          4  Deaths.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay, all right.

          6    I think my colleagues also have some questions.

          7  Council Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo, and then

          8  Council Member Helen Sears.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         10  Thank you Mr. Chair.  So getting the vaccine before

         11  the end of next month is not too late?  It seems

         12  we're well into the flu season by the end of

         13  November.  You're not concerned about that?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:  We

         15  would like to point out is just a distinction

         16  between flu vaccination season, which is exactly now

         17  and will run into next year, and when there's

         18  actually influenza virus activity, which generally

         19  happens after the new year with the peak in

         20  February.  So there's ample time for people to be

         21  vaccinated now and receive protection in advance of

         22  when there's actually influenza virus activity.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  So

         24  when you look at the flu season between the months

         25  of October and December, how many cases reported
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          2  versus what happens after the new year?  What are

          3  the numbers?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:  We

          5  can provide numbers for you.  There has been no

          6  unusual flu activity so far, but the vast majority

          7  of flu activity is after the new year.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  So

          9  maybe if you could provide that to the Committee

         10  because one flu case that happens because we didn't

         11  have vaccine before the end of November, is one case

         12  too many in my opinion.

         13                 Dr. Mojica, I'm perplexed about why

         14  there's so much emphasis on employees.  Don't they

         15  have insurance?  Can't they go their own private

         16  doctors to get this and the flu vaccine's that you

         17  would use for the employees can otherwise go to

         18  patients?  And what are the numbers?

         19                 DR. MOJICA:  We have in our vaccine

         20  to cover both our employees and our patients.  It is

         21  true that they do have insurance and they can go to

         22  their private providers for the flu vaccine,

         23  however, it is far more convenient for our employees

         24  to get the flu vaccine on site and this week, as I

         25  mentioned earlier, beginning yesterday, all the way
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          2  to Sunday November 4th, we're making the flu vaccine

          3  available to employees at their work station in all

          4  tours.  So if somebody is working between midnight

          5  and eight will have the opportunity to get that

          6  where they are working and not necessarily have to

          7  go some place where the flu vaccine will be made

          8  available.  It is the recommendations from the

          9  Centers for Disease Control.  It is recommended by

         10  the ACIP, it is recommended by and required by the

         11  Joint Commission to one, provide the flu vaccine to

         12  employees of health care facilities, and two, to

         13  make it available to them at no cost and without any

         14  barrier for receiving it.  So this year we're doing

         15  just that, we've been doing it for the last few

         16  years, and this year we had tried to provide more

         17  carrots than stick.  We are providing them with

         18  gifts when they receive the flu vaccine.  And as a

         19  matter of fact, for eligible employees who are

         20  participating --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         22  I'm not --

         23                 DR. MOJICA: -- Will get $100.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  I

         25  don't particularly care for carrots.  Let me take
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          2  this question in a different direction.  The rates

          3  are low.  Do we know that ability to pay for the

          4  vaccine, for those that are not insured, is that a

          5  contributing factor to why the rates are low?  Do we

          6  know how many uninsured individuals are effected by

          7  the flu annually?

          8                 DR. MOJICA:  All right, well that may

          9  be a question on why patients who are not insured

         10  are not getting vaccinated. Because all of our

         11  employees for the most part will have some

         12  insurance.  It's true that their insurance may cover

         13  for it, and we don't even ask them to go to their

         14  physician to get the flu vaccine.  We offer this on

         15  site.  The reasons why the vaccination rate is low

         16  are many and varied.  Some of them are because of

         17  some misconception about the flu vaccine itself.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         19  But I'm asking, I'm sorry, doctor, specifically do

         20  we know how much uninsured individuals are not able

         21  to get the vaccine because they just cannot pay for

         22  it?  That's my question.

         23                 DR. MOJICA:  That I'm not sure.  I'm

         24  not sure how many people are uninsured and not able

         25  to get the flu vaccine.  The Health Department may
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          2  have some information on that, but as you know,

          3  there is no barrier for getting the flu vaccine in

          4  corporate facilities, regardless of their insurance,

          5  because we are going to provide it to them when they

          6  come to any of our facilities.  So it's not a

          7  question of insurance, or insure ability, it's a

          8  question of coming to the facilities and eager to

          9  get the flu vaccine --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         11  So, my constituents can be encouraged to go into the

         12  HHC facilities --

         13                 DR. MOJICA:  Absolutely.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  --

         15  And they will not be charged.  If they go to a

         16  private facility, they will?

         17                 DR. MOJICA:  I'm not sure about the

         18  private facilities.  In corporate facilities, if

         19  they have no ability to pay for the flu vaccine,

         20  that is not going to be a hinderance for getting the

         21  flu vaccine.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:  If I

         23  may add, I think part of what we've done with 311

         24  and with the flu locator is that there are actually

         25  many sites that do provide flu vaccine, irrespective
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          2  of insurance status.  So all New Yorkers can get a

          3  flu shot if they want one and it does not depend on

          4  their insurance status.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  Do

          6  you have a list of those sites, outside of the HHC

          7  facilities, is that what you mean?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:  Well

          9  on the locator, on our website, there are over 700

         10  sites listed and people can access that information

         11  by calling 311 as well.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  We

         13  refer the constituency to that website they can

         14  identify something close to home and they can

         15  reasonably expect to show up and not be charged for

         16  the vaccine.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:  Yes,

         18  again 311 will provide the information and at the

         19  same time that they refer to a clinic, which will be

         20  based on zip code among other criteria, they will be

         21  given information about the insurance or payment

         22  that may or may not be required for the different

         23  sites.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         25  Okay, and my last question.  You both testified that
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          2  you're doing your outreach campaigns in Spanish and

          3  English.  Why only Spanish and English?

          4                 DR. MOJICA:  That's a good question.

          5  I can't respond to you why only Spanish and English,

          6  although in addition to the radio ad's in Spanish

          7  and English we have some written materials that we

          8  provide in some other languages to communities in

          9  which that language is spoken.  So in Queens, for

         10  example, we do have not a special, but additional

         11  information for those who speak South Asian

         12  languages, like Punjabi and Bengali and Hindi

         13  (phonetic) --

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:

         15  Bengali and Hindi.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:  So

         17  how many other languages do you have material in?

         18  Do you have a number of languages, or just those

         19  three that you mentioned?

         20                 DR. MOJICA:  No, I think we have a

         21  number of materials.  I'm not quite sure exactly.

         22  In addition to that, however, as you know we have

         23  services for patients with limited English

         24  proficiency.  And while they may not be able to

         25  communicate in English, directly to our provider,
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          2  translation or translated materials can be made

          3  available to them through that particular service.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

          5  Now that's for the patient that goes into the

          6  facility.  Are there any plans to do any more public

          7  service announcement in other languages?

          8                 DR. MOJICA:  I will investigate in

          9  the feasibility of doing that and will do that if we

         10  can within the next week or so.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         12  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         14  much.  Next we have Council Member Helen Sears.  And

         15  we've been joined by Council Member John Liu and

         16  Council Member Mike McMahon.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you very

         18  much.  Just to make a comment about my colleague

         19  asking about the different languages, we in the

         20  Council voted on six or seven that were the official

         21  languages to do translations.  And perhaps, and I

         22  just don't remember all of them at the moment, but

         23  they weren't a lot. We identified about six that the

         24  hospital and HHC was in compliance with. I think

         25  then they added additional languages to that.  So I
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          2  don't know what they are, but I know those brochures

          3  have been, for different issues, have been

          4  translated in those six or seven languages that we

          5  voted on that came out of the Health Committee

          6  actually.

          7                 My question is that you're prepared

          8  to do for the flu vaccination season, one of them is

          9  to increase public awareness and outreach.  So I

         10  just wish to make a comment about that because the

         11  63 or that percentage, I know what I hear from my

         12  constituents, and my District is the smallest but

         13  it's the largest in population fairly, is that one,

         14  they are afraid to get it because you hear you get

         15  the flu if you never got it.  So there are

         16  misconceptions out there that need to be addressed

         17  as to what are the results when you get a flu

         18  vaccination.  The second one is, that people do not

         19  know how they can get the flu.  Is it airborne?  Is

         20  it something you catch like the ordinary cold?

         21  That's unclear and I think if those two things, and

         22  I'm not saying they're the only in doubt issues, but

         23  if those were cleared up, I think people would have

         24  a tendency to get the vaccinations.  Because fear

         25  keeps them away, they don't want to get sick if
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          2  they're healthy, so they certainly don't want to get

          3  the flu, and some may not even be aware if it's an

          4  airborne problem.  And if it is I think that would

          5  encourage more people to actually get the

          6  vaccination.  And I'm not sure if any of that is in

          7  just some of the material that I've seen about the

          8  flu vaccines. And if that would be two of the

          9  reasons why one would get the vaccination.

         10                 DR. MOJICA:  Just to address those

         11  two issues.  One, we're doing that with our own

         12  employees because our own employees still have that

         13  kind of misconception about --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Sure.

         15                 DR. MOJICA:  -- Getting the flu after

         16  receiving the flu vaccine, and also not quite clear

         17  on how flu is being transmitted.  Once we get over

         18  that hump of hoping to educate the employees, we are

         19  hoping that they will then educate our own patients

         20  so that they can convince them to get the flu

         21  vaccine themselves.  So we're working on that true

         22  education and actual information and skills building

         23  among our employees and hopefully that gets

         24  translated to their communication to the public.

         25                 It is true, however, that in any of
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          2  our messages to the public we don't address those

          3  directly, and that is a good suggestion that we may

          4  have to take at some point.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:  If I

          6  can add, we do hear those exact reasons why people

          7  don't want a flu shot and I think that this year's

          8  campaign is specifically designed to tackle those

          9  issues head on.  Our posters address how flu is

         10  spread and our brochures also talk about sort of

         11  myths where we layout one by one what those myths

         12  are, for example, you cannot get the flu from the

         13  flu shot, and so forth.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  That would be

         15  very helpful. If you have pamphlets I think every

         16  Council Member would like to have those in their

         17  office and perhaps the Committee might arrange of

         18  how we would get a supply of them because my office

         19  is in an attorney's building, I mean there are about

         20  five or six attorney's and I'm on the ground floor

         21  and we get a lot of traffic in that building.  And

         22  the first bell they ring usually is ours because we

         23  are on the first floor.  We also keep outside a

         24  credenza that has all of this information.  So those

         25  who visit the attorney's, those who come in to see
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          2  us, we provide a marvelous access to that kind of

          3  information.  So I think that probably all of us

          4  would be in a position to do that.  Because I think

          5  that your numbers would increase for those who will

          6  receive the vaccine once these ambiguities are

          7  cleared up in addition to whatever other ones you

          8  identify.

          9                 Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         11  much.  Next we have Council Member Helen Foster.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Just quickly,

         13  I know you say you can't get the flu, but I swear I

         14  got the flu shot and got sick. And I get it every

         15  year, so a person's perception is a reality.  So

         16  since I perceived it made me sick, every time I get

         17  it I get prepared to be sick, but that's not where

         18  I'm going.

         19                 In your literature do you have

         20  prevention mechanisms?  So for those people that

         21  don't fall in the age category or the work category,

         22  how you prevent possibly catching the flu is, you

         23  know, washing your hands, you know, whatever it is,

         24  so that we are also being very proactive with the

         25  public service announcements and with the
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          2  literature, in addition to what you need to do to

          3  get your flu shot and it doesn't cause the flu and

          4  it is helpful.  Anything that you can do if you

          5  don't fall into those categories to get the flu shot

          6  that may help you prevent getting the flu.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:  Thank

          8  you very much for that question and we absolutely

          9  address the importance of respiratory hygiene is

         10  what we will call it.  So, for example, covering

         11  your cough, washing your hands is very important.

         12  We encourage people to stay home when they are sick

         13  because that's how they end up spreading the

         14  infection as well.  I think the good news is that we

         15  do have an ample supply of flu vaccine this year, so

         16  in fact everyone who wants a flu shot this year

         17  should be able to get it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         19  much.  Now we have Council Member Kendall Stewart.

         20  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  You spoke about lower rates

         21  of this vaccination.  And I wanted to know if you

         22  have specific plans to get to the people who are at

         23  risk, like seniors.  Do you have a plan?  We know

         24  most of seniors go to senior centers.  Do we have a

         25  plan where we go in there and let's say 12 days
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          2  vaccination day, and everybody in that center will

          3  be vaccinated on that day if they show up to the

          4  center?  Do we have a plan like that?

          5                 I thought someone from DFTA would

          6  answer that question.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WHITAKER:  I'm

          8  Linda Whitaker from the New York City Department for

          9  the Aging, Assistant Commissioner for Community

         10  Outreach Emergency Preparedness and

         11  Intergovernmental Affairs.

         12                 Yes, we do have a plan.  We work

         13  cooperatively with the Department of Health and

         14  Mental Health with over 325 sites.  We have

         15  approximately 300 senior centers and other programs.

         16    We have that as participating in this outreach.

         17  So, yes, they have their dates.  They're scheduled.

         18  They informed the seniors, not only those that are

         19  in the center, but they allow them to also inform

         20  the neighborhood that flu shots will be available at

         21  those sites.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  And do you

         23  notify the local District Offices of the Council

         24  whose district they may be in?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WHITAKER:  The
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          2  flu shot is located on the locator.  The Department

          3  of Health, Mental Health actually does all the

          4  scheduling. --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  The reason

          6  why I'm asking, I may not have asked this question

          7  if I'd known, and this is something that I plan to

          8  organize at my centers.  I just wanted to know when

          9  you're doing it if you notify the representative of

         10  that district, that particular district at that

         11  time.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WHITAKER:  We

         13  can, we have not --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  You have

         15  not, well --

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WHITAKER:  --

         17  But we can.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  -- I think

         19  you should.  All right. Thank you.  Let me ask

         20  another question and it's not necessarily for aging.

         21    We're talking about other folks that are at risk,

         22  infants, do we have any plan on going into daycare

         23  centers or for pre- K and kindergarten kids because

         24  usually the folks who are at risk are those of both

         25  extremes of the human, I don't know what term I

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  should use, the young, the very young, and the very

          3  old.  So I want to know if we have any plan for

          4  children that are in kindergarten and daycare

          5  centers and things like that?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSION ZUCKER:  To

          7  answer the question, the most important

          8  recommendation for young children is for them to be

          9  vaccinated actually by their primary care provider,

         10  in their medical home, which is why we concentrate

         11  so much of our efforts into making sure that the

         12  doctors do have vaccine.  What we are doing for

         13  daycare centers is, in fact, sending our brochures

         14  and promotional materials, so that the parents will

         15  know that they need to get their child vaccinated.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right,

         17  so you have some sort of a, not a true plan, but you

         18  have some ways of really encouraging them to do it.

         19  Have you ever thought about really setting out

         20  something that you make it -- you know, a lot of

         21  these youngsters will get sick.  They get sick

         22  because they may not be following any regimen or

         23  anything like that.  I just wanted to know that

         24  there's a plan that someone is going around with it

         25  in these centers and at least talking to the folks
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          2  who are administrative there, and saying this is

          3  what you need to do.  Because sometimes you have

          4  ten, fifteen kids out because they're sick and they

          5  got sick because they came to a daycare center that

          6  picked it up from another child.  So we may need to

          7  be a little more proactive on this issue, so I just

          8  wanted to know if you had a plan.

          9                 My last question, Mr. Chair, is the

         10  fact that you said a while ago that you take care of

         11  all of your workers, the medical workers.  If you

         12  take care of the workers, are you also proactive in

         13  making sure that all those large institutions that

         14  have folks that may, for example, like places where

         15  people work in a big, a large amount of people

         16  working together, if they are being encouraged to at

         17  least get the flu vaccine even though they may not

         18  fall in the category of seniors or children, at

         19  least they know that they can be vaccinated too, and

         20  they do it each year like health officials?

         21                 DR. MOJICA:  I am only speaking of

         22  our activities to promote flu vaccination in

         23  healthcare workers because that's what we have.  I'm

         24  not quite sure if you're asking about promoting the

         25  flu vaccination in employees of other large
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          2  facilities?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

          4                 DR. MOJICA:  That I'm not doing.  I'm

          5  only concentrating on healthcare workers and

          6  facilities that we operate.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Would you

          8  advise that that is something we promote?

          9                 DR. MOJICA:  The Health Department.

         10  I refer to the Health Department to answer that

         11  question.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:  Yes,

         13  yes, our promotional activities really target all

         14  New Yorkers to get a flu shot if they want a flu

         15  shot this year, and encourage especially those who

         16  have an indication that is our risk of complications

         17  to get their flu vaccine this season.  People do

         18  have a choice of where they can get their flu shot

         19  and I think that's important in terms of expanding

         20  access so if they work in a large corporation they

         21  can certainly get their flu vaccine from their

         22  provider.  Some employers do offer flu shot clinics

         23  as well and well all of the hospital, as well as

         24  long term care facilities and other areas where

         25  there are high risk persons do offer flu vaccines as
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          2  well.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KENDALL:  Well, I

          4  understand what you're saying, but let's take for

          5  example our education system.  Do we encourage, do

          6  we have any promotional ways of reaching out to

          7  teachers?  Folks to me, they fall in the same

          8  category as health officials, dealing with folks and

          9  they may be at risk or so because of dealing with a

         10  lot of young children, and I wanted to know seeing

         11  that teachers are part of the City employees catch

         12  if we would be reaching out to those workers also

         13  and making sure that they understand that they need

         14  to get flu shots.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER ZUCKER:  We

         16  have worked in the past for efforts to make sure

         17  again it's all New Yorkers, get a flu shot, and we

         18  have done specific work in the past targeting

         19  teachers.  I think that is an excellent suggestion

         20  that we can follow- up on.  We have worked with the

         21  Department of Education to provide information to

         22  them about flu vaccine already and we can follow- up

         23  with that further.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          3  much.  We've also been joined by Council Member Inez

          4  Dickens.  Any questions for our panel?  We can move

          5  onto the next.  Thank you very much.

          6                 Next we have Michael Seilback, and

          7  Dr. Ruth Feinstein, Finkelstein, apologize, from New

          8  York Academy of Medicine.  You can begin.

          9                 MR. SEILBACK:  Good afternoon, my

         10  name is Michael Seilback, Senior Director of Public

         11  Policy and Advocacy for the American Lung

         12  Association of the City of New York.

         13                 For more than 100 years the American

         14  Lung Association of the City of New York has worked

         15  to prevent lung disease and promote lung health

         16  among the residents of the five boroughs.  In that

         17  regard, on behalf of the organization, I am pleased

         18  to provide the following testimony regarding efforts

         19  in New York City to combat the flu.

         20                 Influenza, more commonly known as the

         21  flu, is a serious infectious disease that spreads

         22  easily from person to person, primarily when an

         23  infected individual coughs or sneezes. Influenza can

         24  be transmitted even before symptoms appear and for

         25  many days after the symptoms begin.  Typical
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          2  symptoms include abrupt onset of high fever, muscle

          3  and joint pain, chills, a dry cough, headache, runny

          4  nose, and a sore throat.  Often, in these early

          5  stages, these symptoms are confused with that of a

          6  cold, and the severity of the illness is

          7  underestimated.

          8                 Each year an estimated 2.6 million

          9  New Yorkers get the flu causing illness and even

         10  death in certain high- risk populations, such as

         11  adults and children with heart, kidney and lung

         12  diseases, including asthma.  Annually the flu causes

         13  192 million days spent in bed, 70 million lost

         14  working days and 346 million days of restricted

         15  activity.  Nationally an average of 36,000 people

         16  die from the flu and its complications.

         17                 To a large extent these deaths are

         18  preventable. Given the impact of the flu on the

         19  nation's health and productivity extensive resources

         20  and strategies have been developed to protect our

         21  health by preventing the flu.

         22                 The best tool against the flu is the

         23  flu shot.  A yearly influenza vaccination is up to

         24  92 percent effective in preventing the flu and

         25  reducing its severity.  Although mild side effects
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          2  are possible, a person cannot get influenza from the

          3  vaccine.

          4                 However, despite longstanding

          5  immunization recommendations for people with chronic

          6  diseases like asthma, only 40 percent of adults and

          7  10 percent of children are actually immunized.  This

          8  leaves the vast majority of people with asthma and

          9  other lung disease at serious increased risk for

         10  complications and illness.

         11                 The Lung Association is actively

         12  advocating for improved influenza immunization

         13  rates, especially among the more than one million

         14  New York City residents with asthma, 300,000 of

         15  which are children.

         16                 To assist with these efforts, as

         17  mentioned earlier the Lung Association has compiled

         18  a searchable database of local flu shot clinics, the

         19  Flu Clinic Locator, which is available at

         20  lungusa.org.  The Association's Locator, and our

         21  partnership with DOHMH is designed to encourage flu

         22  vaccination now, before the flu season swings into

         23  high gear.

         24                 In addition to those with asthma, the

         25  Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
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          2  recommends annual influenza vaccinations for

          3  children, adults over 50, resident of long- term

          4  care facilities, women who may become pregnant

          5  during influenza season and health care workers.

          6                 Despite this last recommendation,

          7  less than one in three health care workers in New

          8  York city are vaccinated against influenza.  Given

          9  that these individuals are on the front lines of

         10  public health and are the most likely to come in

         11  contact with the disease, their vaccination is

         12  essential to break the chain of infection.  We urge

         13  the Council to ensure that New York City's health

         14  care workers are required to receive influenza

         15  vaccines.

         16                 Lastly, we urge the Council to keep

         17  pressure on our New York State legislators to pass

         18  legislation, which would give pharmacists the

         19  ability to provide flu and pneumonia immunizations.

         20  Allowing pharmacists to immunize is quickly becoming

         21  the standard of care in this country, but sadly New

         22  York lags behind as one of the small number of

         23  states that do not allow its pharmacists to

         24  administer vaccinations.

         25                 As a safe and cost- effective way to
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          2  prevent illness and save lives, vaccinations must be

          3  as widely available as possible.  Enabling

          4  pharmacists to administer flu and pneumonia

          5  immunizations is an effective way to prevent these

          6  respiratory diseases and drastically increase the

          7  amount of people who receive influenza

          8  immunizations.

          9                 The American Lung Association of the

         10  City of New York is pleased to work with the New

         11  York City Council and the rest of our elected

         12  leadership to ensure that we increase immunizations,

         13  decrease the incidence of influenza and allow New

         14  York City residents to breathe easier.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.  You

         17  may begin.

         18                 DR. FINKELSTEIN:  Thank you so much

         19  for this opportunity to speak before you.  I'm Ruth

         20  Finkelstein, and I'm the Policy Director at the New

         21  York Academy of Medicine.

         22                 The New York Academy of Medicine has

         23  been around in New York for about 160 years and it's

         24  our job to improve the health of people living in

         25  Cities, by a process that includes doing research,
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          2  doing the activities the research shows us will

          3  improve the health of the public and then bringing

          4  the results of that research to you to decision

          5  makers to help expand the effects of that research

          6  to reach others.  And there's an important group

          7  missing from the conversation so far today about flu

          8  vaccine, and that's a group of people that we call

          9  hard to reach population. And those are the people

         10  that are not connected to the healthcare system.

         11  There are old people and people with multiple

         12  chronic conditions, each of whom are in the

         13  categories recommended to get flu vaccinations that

         14  are not connected currently to the health system.

         15  This is one of the reasons that we have big

         16  disparities between one population and another in

         17  receipt of flu vaccine.  So that while the New York

         18  City average overall is about 60 percent for the

         19  recommended groups.  That's not distributed evenly

         20  and African Americans, Latinos, and people in

         21  specific disadvantage communities have rates far

         22  lower than the City average.  So what do we do about

         23  that?  Of course everything that the Health

         24  Department is doing is a really important good idea

         25  and the activities that HHC is doing are important
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          2  and we support the Lung Association in what they're

          3  doing, but we have to add another component part and

          4  that's going directly into disadvantaged

          5  communities, communities with lower than average

          6  levels of immunization and we did this with outreach

          7  workers wearing these bright yellow raincoats.  They

          8  looked ridiculous in my opinion, but they stood out,

          9  everybody recognized them, Project VIVA, they spoke

         10  the language of the participants, they had brochures

         11  a little bit snazzier than the Health Department

         12  brochures, beautiful as they are, that had cartoon

         13  mythbusters portraying the common myths about flu

         14  vaccine and why they were wrong.  Education

         15  Information went to a million meetings, stood on a

         16  million street corners, stood in a Pathmark

         17  Supermarket and administered 2,200 vaccinations to

         18  high risk populations over the course of two flu

         19  seasons.  What did we learn from doing this?  We

         20  learned from doing this, that in addition to the

         21  strategies that go through the Health Department, in

         22  addition to those that go through the senior

         23  centers, in addition to those that go through HHC,

         24  we need direct community based organization

         25  strategies and direct to community strategies to
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          2  really up that flu vaccination rate in exactly the

          3  populations most at risk of the vaccine.  So we'll

          4  encourage you to encourage the Health Department,

          5  DFTA, to expand their vaccination efforts outside of

          6  just the traditional healthcare based approaches.

          7  And we also encourage the Council to look at that

          8  legislation that you've been hearing about in Albany

          9  that would allow pharmacists to perform vaccinations

         10  because that's an extension of this same basic idea

         11  of you don't have to be able to get into healthcare

         12  and I know that the Health Department and HHC are

         13  telling you that you don't have to have insurance to

         14  get the vaccination and I know that that's true, but

         15  does the community know it's true?  Our research

         16  suggests it doesn't.  They don't know that you don't

         17  have to pay for the vaccine and that can be another

         18  barrier too.  So we just encourage you to look at

         19  the communities where vaccination rates are lower,

         20  look at the, you know, specific groups where they're

         21  lower and do some targeted outreach in those areas

         22  too.

         23                      Thanks.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.  I

         25  think we're going to be sending up a whole new
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          2  message to the State asking them to allow the

          3  pharmacists to actually distribute the vaccines

          4  directly since they are the first line of defense.

          5  I stated earlier diabetics go direct to the

          6  pharmacist for refills, that will be a great

          7  opportunity to get them immunized at the same time.

          8  So we do agree and concur that that's a great idea,

          9  so we're going to be issuing that.

         10                 Are there any questions on behalf of

         11  my colleagues. Seeing none.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 Anyone else here to testify.  Seeing

         14  none.  Thank you ladies and gentlemen.  This meeting

         15  is adjourned.

         16                 (Hearing concluded 2:45 p.m.)
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